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DESCRIBE THE PRESENT AND ORIGINAL (IF KNOWN) PHYSICAL APPEARANCE
The Lewis Residence exemplifies the elegant homes that were built during the late 
1880's and 1890's on Third Avenue in Fargo. The residence reflects the synthetic 
eclecticism of early Victorian construction in a neoclassical exterior emphasis and 
in a variety in interior and exterior forms. It is a three-story, gable-roofed wood 
frame structure facing north, with major gabled roof dormers on the east and west 
roof slopes. Smaller gabled window dormers also break the east and west roof slopes 
to the south of the major dormers.

The facade exhibits neoclassical elements in a pedimented gable, symetry, and detail 
in a projecting porch. Fluted Ionic columns support the bracketed porch roof, with 
balustades spanning the column bases. A cross-braced balustrade on the second level 
further stresses the importance of the porch. A latticed porch base gives additional 
visual and textural variety to the facade, and a curved porch landing projection 
repeats a feature established in entry vestibule. A pair of curved stained glass 
windows flank a single vestibule door, and the vestibule itself is flanked by a 
pair of one-over-one clear Windows.

On the second level are a pair of double-hung double windows with transoms; a stylized 
porthole window interupts the facade's overall rectilinear rhythm. Within the 
"tympanum" of the facade is a Palladian window. A row of dentils ornaments the under 
side of each of the building's cornices.

The rear facade repeats the patterns of the north facade with some exceptions. The 
south gable contains a tri-part double-hung window with a porthole window over it. 
The second story contains a Rouble window with arched heads, flanked by a rectan­ 
gular double hung window on the left and a single-pane dotir with transom on the 
right. A bracketed half-porch capped by a cross-braced balustrade, is supported by 
a single fluted loriic column. A tool shed "wittf extended hipped roof is attached to 
the half-porch arid is in ,part supported by a single column.

' .'-,'.'-";' " "'''..

The east elevation is distinguished by two rounded dormer bays with clear windows, 
and also by a Palladian window in the gable. The west elevation has a single but more 
prominant bay finished with stained windows, and has a gable window pattern like that 
of the rear facade. The elegance of the structure is enhanced by spacious grounds 
measuring 100 by 140 feet.

The interior of the first floor consists of a living room, library, dining room, 
breakfast alcove, kitchen, pantry, and smoking room. Rich materials create a sump­ 
tuous mood in these rooms that display the original owner's affluence. Oak, maple, 
and cherry woods are generously employed in coffered wall paneling, built-in book­ 
cases, door architraves, and mantelpieces. Carved bead-and-reel or egg-and-dart 
decorations adorn many architrave trims and mirror enframernents, and a decorative 
screen with East!ake-1ike beaded spindles separates the living room from the stair 
landing. The kitchen contains blond oak cabinets, wainscoting, drawers with shell 
motif pulls, and a built-in icebox.
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Richness of materials and styles is also evident in the stained glass windows placed 
in the curved bays and vestibule. The most impressive stained window is on the second 
floor staircase landing, where a central window in sinuous Art Nouveau style depicts 
a hanging wreath, festoons, and two torches with intertwined serpents. Two smaller 
stained windows flank the central window and echo the hanging wreath theme. The 
wreath is also the leitmotiv displayed on fire boxes, light fixtures, and other 
stained windows throughout the building.

Brass, another favored Victorian material, has been used for door fixtures and fire 
boxes. Leaded glass doors of the library bookcases also contribute to the overall 
interior reflection of opulence.

Neoclassical elements are also evident in first floor rooms, including fireplace 
mantels with Doric pilasters, entablatures, cornice dentils, and a fire box decorated 
with a festoon pattern. Th.e library contains a classical frieze parallel to the ceiling 
molding, depicting mythological scenes. Low relief plaster panels decorate the dining 
room walls in a "Four Seasons"theme.

The second floor consists of six rooms which were formerly bedrooms and which each 
contain a marble sink, closet, and built-in chest of drawers. Over half the length 
of the third floor is occupied in a ballroom, with several small rooms comprising 
the remainder of the space.
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STATEMENT OF SIGNIFICANCE

The Lewis Residence is a fine example of late nineteenth-century Victorian style, 
and represents the rich architectural milieu of Fargo's Third Avenue during that 
period. More significantly, however, the building was the home of Lieutenant 
Governor Robert S. Lewis (1856-1956), who was one of North Dakota's prominent 
political and business leaders in the early twentieth century.

On June 8, 1899, a building permit was issued to construct a residence for Lewis. 
The house was estimated to cost $12,000 and John Amer was contracted as the 
builder. During that same year, 1899, Lewis 1 residence was completed. After a 
series of owners, the American National Red Cross (Minn-Kota Chapter) purchased 
the property and house from the Robert S. Lewis estate on August 4, 1956. The 
building continues to be occupied by the Minn-Kota Red Cross Chapter office today. 
Lewis 1 grandson, R. C. Lewis, Jr., still resides in Fargo.

Robert S. Lewis was born in Tennessee and in 1868, he moved with his parents to 
Minnesota where he was educated. Lewis began his career as a clerk for a 
Minneapolis mercantile establishment. In 1882, he went, .to. Fargo .in .pakota Territory 
and worked as a clerk at the Red River National Bank. While employed there, Lewis 
was promoted from various positions--teller, .assistant cashier, .cashier until, in 
1897, he became vice president of the bank. Lewis, together with his brother, 
J. H. Lewis, acquired the bank's controlling interest. In 1902, the former was 
chosen bank president and in that same year, the .ewis brothers sold their interest. 
The Red River National Bank was later liquidated and its assets were merged with 
those of the First National Bank of Fargo. Lewis became a director of the latter 
institution. His initiative and resourcefulness led him, together with other 
business associates, to organize a financial institution in 1908 for the purpose of 
receiving savings deposits and performing other banking services. It was from this 
institution that the Dakota Savings Bank of Fargo was formed in 1916.

As an advocate of agrarianism, Lewis 1 interest in North Dakota farming continued 
throughout his life. In 1892, he purchased extensive acreage in the Buffalo area of 
Cass County. Eventually, Lewis was farming more than 10,000 acres and he became one 
of the leading farmers in the northwest territory. He has been credited with ad­ 
vancing the agricultural and livestock industries in the state. With rising prices, 
Lewis sold his Buffalo land holdings in 1910 and later bought 3,000 acres .near 
Mapleton. His knowledge of the livestock industry resulted in his serving as 
secretary for the Fargo Packing Compan^.j

Despite his many business and agricultural activities, Lewis is best known for his 
political career. He was elected to thejstate senate in 1900 and served for four 
years in the legislatures of 1901 (and 19^3. -The apex of his political career was

i ' -
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The nominated property occupies block 30, lots 1 and 2, of the original Fargo townsite
The site size is 100 by 140 feet. It is bounded on the west by 12th Street South, on
the east by llth Street South, on the north by 3rd Avenue, on the south by 4th Avenue.
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his election as lieutenant governor of North Dakota, when he served from 1907 to 
1910 during Governor John Burke^s administration. As an active member of the 
Republican party, Lewis was secretary of the Republican State Convention several 
times,

Lewis' activities were innumerable and in his obituary, the Fargo Forum praised 
his "colorful career in business Qand] politics/' Among the organizations with 
which Lewts was affiliated were; Board of Control, which was in charge of North 
Dakota's penal and charitable institutions, as a member and later chairman; Fargo 
Board of Education, as a member and then president; Board of Trustees for the North 
Dakota Agricultural School, as a member; and Fargo Commercial Club (now the 
Chamber of Commerce), an organization dedicated to civic development, as president. 
Moreover? he headed the Cass County Red Cross and was chairman of the chapter for 
more than 20 years. Lewis was also a member of various fraternal organizations 
in Fargo,

Lewis' important contributions to the history of Fargo and North Dakota were 
recognized by Lewis F. Crawford in the History of North Dakota; "Robert S. Lewis 
was an influential executive in connection with pioneer banking enterprise in the 
City of Fargo, has been actively associated with the advancing of progressive 
farming industry in North Dakota, and in the many years of his residence in this 
state he has stood exponent of loyal, liberal and constructive citizenship." The 
Lewis Residence, by virtue of the fact that it was the home of the former 
lieutenant governor, is a symbol and architectural memorial of Lewis 1 many 
achievements during his prolific career.
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